
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE:  October 18, 2023 
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 
 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 

 
PAGE:         AGENDA ITEMS 
 
  1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE 

  
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 

Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon. 
 

(b) The Polk Extension Service District meeting at 10:00 am on October 17, 2023 has been canceled. 
 

 
 

 

  3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes) 

  4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM October 11, 2023 

  6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
        

(a) Polk County Contract No. 23-202, Yamhill County 
(Jodi Merritt, Community Corrections Director) 
 

   (b)   Polk County Contract No. 23-203 (Amendment 1 to 23-94), Building Codes Division 
    (Valerie Patoine, Polk County Assessor) 
 
   (c)   Polk County Contract No. 23-204 (Amendment 2 to 23-109), Oregon Health Authority 
    (Rosana Warren, Public Health) 
 

 

 

                              THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 
 
  ADJOURNMENT 

    
    
 
 



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES October 11, 2023  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Gordon declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Pope was present and Commissioner Mordhorst was present via 
Zoom. 
 
Staff present: Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer 
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 
The Homeless Prevention Advisory Council will be meeting on October 11, 2023 from 12:00 pm to 
1:30 pm located in the first floor conference room at 182 SW Academy St, Dallas Oregon, 97338. 
 
The Polk Extension Service District will be meeting at 10:00 am on October 17, 2023. The meeting 
will be in the main conference room located on the first floor of 850 Main St Dallas OR 97338. 
 
 

 
3. COMMENTS 
 None. 
 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.  
 
5.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING OF October 4, 2023 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF October 4, 2023. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
 
 
6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
7. DELIBERATION FOR LA 23-02; TEXT AMENDMENTS TO PCZO CHAPTER 136 



October 11, 2023 
Page 2 

 

  

 Eric Knudson, Community Development Associate Planner, presented to the Board and staff a 
memorandum and packet in regards to the deliberation for Legislative Amendment LA 23-02, 
text amendments to Polk County Zoning Ordinance (PCZO) Chapter 136. Mr. Knudson stated 
that a public hearing was held on September 6, 2023 and that the record was left open for two 
weeks until September 20, 2023 at 5:00 PM in order to allow the public to provide comment. 
Planning staff is recommending that the Commissioners move to adopt the text amendments 
to PZCO Chapter 136, as presented in the September 6, 2023 public hearing for LA 23-02. The 
proposed text amendments are to bring PZCO Chapter 136 into compliances with State law 
and to consider adopting additional optional changes for uses that could be permitted within the 
EFU zone.  

 
MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST SECONDED, 

TO APPROVE LA 23-02. 
      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
 
8.  FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE CONCERNING CONSTRUCTION EROSION, 

SEDIMENT CONTROL AND POST CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF CONTROL  
 Morgan Smith, County Counsel, presented to the Board a draft Ordinance 23-02 and Chapter 

61 Storm Water Ordinance. Mr. Smith stated that this would be the first reading of Chapter 61 
and that should the Board choose to approve the Ordinance, there would be a second reading 
in October 25, 2023 where it would also be adopted. Mr. Smith then provided a detail summary 
of what Chapter 61 states. Commissioner Gordon asked a clarifying question about notices and 
violations and what that process would look like. Mr. Smith answered his question. 
Commissioner Pope asked some additional clarifying questions to help the public understand 
better and Mr. Smith answered his questions. Commissioner Pope stated the information he 
would like to see in the wording as well as a map for the public to see in the Chapter. Mr. Smith 
stated why he would be hesitant to put a map in the chapter but that the county can always 
provide an updated Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) map. Austin McGuigan, Community 
Development Director, provided his opinion to Commissioner Pope’s request.  

 
  
 
 
 
 
The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Gordon adjourned the meeting 
at 9:16 a.m. 
 

(a) Polk County Contract No. 23-201, State of Oregon 
(Jodi Merritt, Community Corrections Director) 
 

   (b)   Board of Property Tax Appeal Appointment, Susan Thompson 
    (Cole Steckley, BOPTA Clerk) 
 
   (c)  Board of Property Tax Appeal Appointment, Timothy English 
    (Cole Steckley, BOPTA Clerk) 
 

(a)   Board of Property Tax Appeal Appointment, Lyle Mordhorst 
  (Cole Steckley, BOPTA Clerk) 



October 11, 2023 
Page 3 

 

  

 

 

  
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Jeremy Gordon, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Craig Pope, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: October 18, 2023 



Page 1 — AMEND. NO. 2 of AGREEMENT FOR HOUSING OF JUVENILE OFFENDERS 

AMENDMENT NO. 2  
AGREEMENT FOR HOUSING OF JUVENILE OFFENDERS 

(Yamhill County and Polk County) 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 2 (“Amendment #2”) shall be made effective as of the last date set 
forth adjacent to the signatures of the parties below, between YAMHILL COUNTY, a political 
subdivision of the State of Oregon (“Yamhill”), and POLK COUNTY, a political subdivision of 
the State of Oregon (“Polk”), each acting through its duly elected Board of Commissioners and 
Juvenile Director. 

RECITALS 

1. Yamhill and Polk are parties to that certain agreement dated July 29, 2021 (the
“Underlying Agreement”), memorialized in Yamhill’s records as BO#21-310, pursuant to
which Polk is renting bed space in the Yamhill County Juvenile Detention Center to
house juvenile offenders. The Underlying Agreement was first amended effective March
24, 2022 (“Amendment No. 1”), memorialized in Yamhill’s records as BO# 22-91.

2. Yamhill and Polk now desire to further modify the Underlying Agreement upon the terms
and conditions more particularly set forth herein below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein 
below and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Section 1.a(2), 1.a(3) and 1.a(4) of the Underlying Agreement are hereby deleted in
their entirety and replaced with the following:

“(2)    GUARANTEED BEDS. There shall be reserved to the exclusive use of Polk
on a continuous twenty-four hour a day basis four (4) bed spaces within the detention
center for juveniles who qualify for placement beginning October 1, 2023. The cost
of bed space is set forth in Section 3, below.

(3) EXTRA BEDS.  To the extent additional bed space in excess of four (4) bed
spaces is desired by Polk and is deemed available by Yamhill in its sole judgment,
Yamhill may offer the additional bed space to Polk. If Yamhill determines that it
requires the bed space for its own use, Polk shall be required to vacate any beds in
excess of the four (4) guaranteed beds. The cost of extra bed space is set forth in
Section 3, below.

(4) Yamhill, acting through its staff at the detention center, shall have discretion to
refuse acceptance of any juvenile placed under this Agreement where it reasonably
believes such placement does not comply with lawful requirements of detention
center regulations, State statutes or court order, or when it appears that the mental or
physical condition of the juvenile requires immediate medical attention.”

Polk County Contract No. 23-202
(Amendment 2 to Contract No. 21-123)



Page 2 — AMEND. NO. 2 of AGREEMENT FOR HOUSING OF JUVENILE OFFENDERS 

2. Section 3.a (“Base cost for guaranteed beds”) of the Underlying Agreement is hereby 
deleted and replaced in its entirety by the following language:  

 
“a. Base cost for guaranteed beds.  Beginning October 1, 2023 through June 
30, 2024, the base cost to Polk shall be $180.00 per bed per day for four (4) beds, 
for a total daily charge of $720.00 and a total charge of $198,000.00. Beginning 
July 1, 2024, the base cost to Polk shall increase by $9.00 per bed per day for four 
(4) beds, for a total daily charge of $756.00 and a total charge of $275,940.00. 
Beginning July 1, 2025, the base cost to Polk shall increase by an additional $9.00 
per bed per day for four (4) beds, for a total daily charge of $792.00 and a total 
charge of $289,080.00. Beginning July 1, 2026, the base cost to Polk shall 
increase by an additional $9.00 per bed per day for four (4) beds, for a total daily 
charge of $828.00 and a total charge of $302,220.00. Beginning July 1, 2027, and 
for each twelve-month period thereafter, the base cost to Polk per bed per day for 
four (4) beds shall increase by the greater of either three percent (3%) or the 
amount of the seasonally adjusted CPI–U, West-Size Class B/C, effective 
December 31st of the preceding year. For example, beginning July 1, 2027, the 
base cost to Polk per bed per day would increase by the greater of three percent 
(3%) or the seasonally adjusted CPI-U, West-size Class B/C effective as of 
December 31, 2026.  
 
The base cost shall be paid in monthly installments equivalent to one-twelfth of 
the annual charge, on or before the 15th of the month services are rendered, with 
the first installment due within ten (10) days of Polk’s approval of this 
Amendment #2.  
 

3. Section 3.b (“Extra beds”) of the Underlying Agreement is hereby deleted and 
replaced in its entirety by the following language: 

 
“b. Extra beds.  Beginning October 1, 2023, to the extent extra beds beyond 
the four (4) guaranteed beds are desired by Polk and deemed available on a 
particular day by Yamhill, Polk shall pay $148.00 per bed per day for each bed 
over the four (4) guaranteed beds. Beginning July 1, 2024, the extra bed cost to 
Polk shall be $142 per bed per day for each bed over the four (4) guaranteed beds.  
Beginning July 1, 2025, the extra bed cost to Polk shall increase to $149 per bed 
per day for each bed over the four (4) guaranteed beds. Beginning July 1, 2026, 
the extra bed cost to Polk shall increase to $155 per bed per day for each bed over 
the four (4) guaranteed beds. Beginning July 1, 2027, and for each twelve-month 
period thereafter, the cost to Polk for each extra bed per day shall increase by the 
greater of either three percent (3%) or the amount of the seasonally adjusted CPI–
U, West-Size Class B/C, effective December 31st of the preceding year. For 
example, the percentage increase for July 1, 2027 would be the greater of three 
percent (3%) or the seasonally adjusted CPI-U, West-size Class B/C effective as 
of December 31, 2026.  
 
 



Page 3 — AMEND. NO. 2 of AGREEMENT FOR HOUSING OF JUVENILE OFFENDERS 

The extra bed cost shall be paid in monthly installments equivalent to one-
twelfth of the annual charge, on or before the 15th of the month services are 
rendered, with the first installment due within ten (10) days of Polk’s 
approval of this Amendment #2. 

 
4. Ratification. Except as otherwise expressly modified by the terms of this 

Amendment #2, the Underlying Agreement, as previously amended, shall remain 
unchanged and continue in full force and effect. All terms, covenants, and conditions 
of the Underlying Agreement, as previously amended, not expressly modified herein 
are hereby confirmed and ratified and remain in full force and effect and constitute 
valid and binding obligations of Yamhill and Polk enforceable according to the terms 
thereof.  

 
5. Authority. Yamhill and Polk and each of the persons executing this Amendment #2 

on behalf of Yamhill and Polk hereby covenant and warrant that: (i) each respective 
county has full right and authority to enter into this Amendment #2 and has taken all 
action required to authorize such county (and each person executing this Amendment 
#2 on behalf of such county) to enter into this Amendment #2, and (ii) the person 
signing on behalf of such county is authorized to do so. 

 
6. Binding Effect. All of the covenants contained in this Amendment #2 shall be 

binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective 
heirs, legal representatives, and permitted successors and assigns. 

 
7. Counterparts. This Amendment #2 may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 

of which shall be an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same 
Amendment #2.  

 
8. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are intended to be a material part of this Amendment 

#2 and are incorporated herein by this reference.  
 

 
 
 

(Signature page follows) 
 

  



Page 4 — AMEND. NO. 2 of AGREEMENT FOR HOUSING OF JUVENILE OFFENDERS 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereto caused this Amendment #2 to be executed by 
their duly authorized officers as of the dates and year entered hereinafter. 
 
POLK COUNTY      YAMHILL COUNTY  
 
___________________________, Chair  ____________________________________ 
Printed Name: ____________________  Lindsay Berschauer, Chair 
 
Date:_______________    Date:_______________ 
 
 
 
________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Jodi Merritt      Jessica Beach 
Community Corrections Director   Community Justice Director 
Polk County       Yamhill County 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________   _________________________________ 
Morgan Smith         Christian Boenisch 
Polk County Counsel     Yamhill County Counsel 



PO-44000-00020537 Amd 1   Page 1 of 2

AMENDMENT #1 to 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT #PO-44000-00020537 

This is Amendment No. 1 to PO-44000-00020537, dated July 1, 2023, as amended from time to time 
(“Intergovernmental Agreement”) between the State of Oregon, acting by and through its Department of Consumer and 
Business Services, Building Codes Division (“DCBS”) and Polk County (“Local Government”).   

RECITALS 

1. Intergovernmental Agreement PO-44000-00020537 was effective July 1, 2023.
2. Amendment 1 updates Section 4: Fees and Compensation, including the not to exceed amount.

1. The Agreement is hereby amended as follows (new language is indicated by bold underlining font, and deleted
language is indicated by strikethrough font).

a. This section modifies Section 4: Fees and Compensation.

SECTION 4: FEES AND COMPENSATION 

4.1 The fees collected for MHODS transactions must be deposited with the state weekly through one of 
the following methods: into a state bank account with deposit slips provided by the state; into a state 
account by credit card through the DCBS secure fax line; into a state account through ACH transfer; 
or into a state account by local government investment pool transfer from Local Government's 
account to DCBS 's account, provided that Local Government complies with the Local Government 
Public Funds Information Requirements detailed in the Local Government section of the Oregon State 
Treasury website at oregon.gov/treasury. The state shall remit $35 of each $55 ownership document 
application fee, and all of each trip permit application fee, collected by Local Government on behalf 
of DCBS to Local Government, on a monthly basis. Payment for the previous month will be remitted 
to Local Government by the end of the following month. 

4.2 Local Government shall accept application fees only for complete applications that result in the 
issuance of ownership documents. DCBS shall not issue any refunds of MHODS fees to Local 
Government or to customers for application fees accepted by Local Government. Local Government 
shall retain all Local Government fees generated outside of this Agreement. 

4.3 The maximum not to exceed compensation payable to Local Government under this Agreement is 
$35,500.00 $10,000.00. 

2. Except as expressly amended above, all other terms and conditions of original Agreement are still in full force and
effect. County certifies that the representations, warranties and certifications contained in the original Agreement
are true and correct as of the effective date of this Amendment and with the same effect as though made at the time
of this Amendment.

Signatures on next page. 

Polk County Contract No. 23-203 
(Amendment 1 to 23-94)



PO-44000-00020537 Amd 1                                                                                                       Page 2 of 2
  

SIGNATURES 
 
Polk County 
 
By:    

Printed Name:   
                                                                                                                     
Title:    

Date:    

FEIN:  93-6002310  

     
Approved Pursuant to ORS 279A.140 
 
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE                                                                                             
SERVICES: 
 
Not Required per OAR 125-246-0365(4) 
 
 
 
 
Approved Pursuant to ORS 291.047 
 
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE: 
 
Not Required per OAR-137-045-0050(18) 

State of Oregon acting by and through its 
Department of Consumer and Business 
Services, Building Codes Division 
 

Reviewed by:    
                  Dawn Bass 

Title: Deputy Administrator  

Date:                                                          _______ 

 

Executed by:     
Miriha D. Aglietti  

Title: Designated Procurement Officer 

Date:                                                            
                                                                   

 



CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET

Staff Contact: Rosana Warren Phone Number (Ext): 2428

Department: Health Services: Public Health Consent Calendar Date: October 18, 2023

Contractor Name: Oregon Health Authority

Address: 635 Capitol Street NE, Room 350

City, State, Zip: Salem, OR 97301

Effective Dates - From: August 01, 2023 Through: June 30, 2024

Contract Amount: $594,536.26

Background:

The County receives funds from the Oregon Health Authority to provide Public Health Services to
residents of the County by way of a grant. This contract is the second amendment to the initial
award from the State. The grant award may be modified from time-to-time throughout the fiscal
year to reflect changes to funds and/or programs that are made as part of the grant.

Discussion:

This second Amendment provides funding to the Local Public Health Authority for the continued
Program Service delivery under PE01-01 - State Support, PE12-01 - Emergency Preparedness,
PE44-02 - School Based Health, and PE 51-01 - PH Modernization in the amount of $594,563.26.

Fiscal Impact:

The total for this amendment is $594,536.26 for FY24. PE44-02 has had a minor increase in the
amount $7,000 in funding due to a funding formula adjustment and PE51-01 has had an increase in
funding to offset the ending of PE 51-03 giving a net gain of $60,128. The other Program Elements
have been awarded their remaining amounts from October to June with slight increases from the
previous FY. The Public Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this funding.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that Polk County sign amendment 2 to IGA 180027 with the Oregon Health
Authority.

Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:
Name: Rosana Warren E-mail: hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us

Name: E-mail:

Name: E-mail:



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 1 OF 41 PAGES 

Agreement #180027 

AMENDMENT TO OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 
2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE 

FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this document is available in alternate formats such as 
Braille, large print, audio recordings, Web-based communications and other electronic formats. To request an 
alternate format, please send an e-mail to dhs-oha.publicationrequest@state.or.us or call 503-378-3486 (voice) 
or 503-378-3523 (TTY) to arrange for the alternative format. 

This Second Amendment to Oregon Health Authority 2023-2025 Intergovernmental Agreement for the 
Financing of Public Health Services, effective July 1, 2023, (as amended the “Agreement”), is between the State 
of Oregon acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority (“OHA”) and Polk County, (“LPHA”), the entity 
designated, pursuant to ORS 431.003, as the Local Public Health Authority for Polk County.  OHA and LPHA 
are each a “Party” and together the “Parties” to the Agreement. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify the set of Program Element Descriptions set forth in 
Exhibit B of the Agreement; 

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify the Fiscal Year 2024 (FY24) Financial Assistance Award 
set forth in Exhibit C of the Agreement; 

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify the Exhibit J information required by 2 CFR Subtitle B 
with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants and agreements contained herein and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties 
hereto agree as follows: 

Polk County Contract No. 23-204 (Amendment 2 to 23-109)



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 2 OF 41 PAGES 

AGREEMENT 
1. This Amendment is effective on August 1, 2023, regardless of the date this amendment has been fully 

executed with signatures by every Party and when required, approved by the Department of Justice. 
However, payments may not be disbursed until the Amendment is fully executed. 

2. The Agreement is hereby amended as follows: 
a. Exhibit A “Definitions”, Section 18 “Program Element” is amended to replace the Program 

Element titles and funding source identifiers for PE12 “Public Health Emergency Preparedness 
and Response (PHEP)” with the following: 

PE NUMBER AND TITLE 

• SUB-ELEMENT(S) 
FUND 
TYPE 

FEDERAL AGENCY/ 

GRANT TITLE 
CFDA# 

HIPAA 
RELATED 

(Y/N) 

SUB-
RECIPIENT 

(Y/N) 

PE12 - Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response (PHEP) 

PE 12-01 Public Health 
Emergency Preparedness 
Program (PHEP) 

FF CDC/Public Health 
Emergency Preparedness 93.069 N Y 

PE 12-02 COVID-19 Response FF 

CDC/Public Health 
Emergency Response: 
Cooperative Agreement for 
Emergency Response: 
Public Health Crisis 
Response 

93.354 N Y 

PE12-03 - MPOX Event 
Funding FF Public Health Emergency 

Response 93.354 N Y 

PE12-04 - MRC-STTRONG FF Medical Reserve Corps 
Small Grant Program 93.008 N Y 

PE12-05 - Hospital Preparedness 
Program FF 

National Bioterrorism 
Hospital Preparedness 
Program 

93.889 N Y 

b. Exhibit B Program Element #12 “Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response 
(PHEPR) Program” and Program Element 44 “School Based Health Centers (SBHC)” and 
Program Element 51 “Public Health Modernization” are hereby superseded and replaced by 
Attachment A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

c. Exhibit C, Section 1 of the Agreement, entitled “Financial Assistance Award” for FY24 is 
hereby superseded and replaced in its entirety by Attachment B, entitled “Financial Assistance 
Award (FY24)”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Attachment B must 
be read in conjunction with Section 3 of Exhibit C. 

d. Exhibit J of the Agreement entitled “Information required by 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 
2 CFR Part 200” is amended to add to the federal award information datasheet as set forth in 
Attachment C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

3. LPHA represents and warrants to OHA that the representations and warranties of LPHA set forth in 
Section 4 of Exhibit F of the Agreement are true and correct on the date hereof with the same effect as if 
made on the date hereof. 

  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 3 OF 41 PAGES 

4. Capitalized words and phrases used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in 
the Agreement. 

5. Except as amended hereby, all terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect. 
6. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which when taken together 

shall constitute one agreement binding on all parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories 
to the same counterpart.  Each copy of this Amendment so executed shall constitute an original. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the dates set forth 

below their respective signatures. 
7. Signatures. 

STATE OF OREGON, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 

Approved by:   
Name: /for/ Nadia A. Davidson  
Title: Director of Finance  

Date:   

POLK COUNTY LOCAL PUBLIC HEALTH AUTHORITY 

Approved by:   

Printed Name:   

Title:   

Date:   

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE – APPROVED FOR LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 

Agreement form group-approved by Steven Marlowe, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Tax and 
Finance Section, General Counsel Division, Oregon Department of Justice by email on August 11, 2023, 
copy of email approval in Agreement file. 

REVIEWED BY OHA PUBLIC HEALTH ADMINISTRATION 

Reviewed by:   
Name: Rolonda Widenmeyer (or designee)  
Title: Program Support Manager  

Date:   



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 4 OF 41 PAGES 

Attachment A 
Program Element Descriptions 

Program Element #12: Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response (PHEPR) Program  
OHA Program Responsible for Program Element: 
Public Health Division/Center for Public Health Practice/Health Security, Preparedness & Response 
Section 
1. Description. Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in 

accordance with, and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below to deliver the Oregon 
Health Authority (OHA) Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response (PHEPR) Program. 
The PHEPR Program shall address prevention, protection, mitigation, response, and recovery phases for 
threats and emergencies that impact the health of people in its jurisdiction through plan development and 
revision, exercise and response activities based on the 15 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
(CDC) Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response Capabilities.1 
Emergency Preparedness and Response is one of the seven foundational capabilities described in the 
Oregon Public Health Modernization Manual. 2 . The foundational capabilities are needed for 
governmental public health to meet its charge to improve the health of everyone in Oregon. The vision 
for this foundational capability as stated in the Public Health Modernization Manual is as follows: “A 
healthy community is a resilient community that is prepared and able to respond to and recover from 
public health threats and emergencies.” 
This Program Element, and all changes to this Program Element are effective the first day of the month 
noted in the Issue Date section of Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award unless otherwise noted in 
the Comments and Footnotes of Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award. 

2. Definitions Specific to Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response. 
a. Access and Functional Needs: Population defined as those whose members may have 

additional response assistance needs that interfere with their ability to access or receive medical 
care before, during, or after a disaster or public health emergency,3 including but not limited to 
communication, maintaining health, independence, support and safety, and transportation. 
Individuals in need of additional response assistance may include children, people who live in 
congregate settings, older adults, pregnant and postpartum people, people with disabilities,4 
people with chronic conditions, people with pharmacological dependency, people with limited 
access to transportation, people with limited English proficiency or non-English speakers, people 
with social and economic limitations, and people experiencing houselessness.5 

b. Base Plan: A plan that is maintained by the LPHA, describing fundamental roles, 
responsibilities, and activities performed during prevention, preparedness, mitigation, response, 
and recovery phases of FEMA’s disaster management cycle. This plan may be titled as the 
Emergency Support Function #8, an annex to the County Emergency Operations Plan, Public 
Health All-Hazards Plan, or other title that fits into the standardized county emergency 
preparedness nomenclature. 

c. Budget Period: The intervals of time (usually 12 months) into which a multi-year project period 
is divided for budgetary/ funding use. For purposes of this Program Element, the Budget Period 
is July 1 through June 30. 

d. CDC: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention. 

  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 5 OF 41 PAGES 

e. CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response Capabilities: The 15 
capabilities developed by the CDC to serve as national public health preparedness standards for 
state and local planning.1 

f. Due Date: If a Due Date falls on a weekend or holiday, the Due Date will be the next business 
day following. 

g. Equity: The State of Oregon definition of Equity acknowledges that not all people, or all 
communities, are starting from the same place due to historic and current systems of oppression. 
Equity is the effort to provide different levels of support based on an individual’s or group’s 
needs in order to achieve fairness in outcomes. Equity actionably empowers communities most 
impacted by systemic oppression.6 Historically underserved and marginalized populations 
include but are not limited to people with Access and Functional Needs and disabilities, 
racial/ethnic minorities, people who are economically disadvantaged, those whose second 
language is English, and rural and remote communities, etc. 

h. Health Alert Network (HAN): A web-based, secure, redundant, electronic communication and 
collaboration system operated by OHA, available to all Oregon public health officials, hospitals, 
labs and other health service providers. The data it contains is maintained jointly by OHA and all 
LPHAs. This system provides continuous, high-speed electronic access to public health 
information including the capacity for broadcasting information to registered partners in an 
emergency, 24 hours per day, 7 days per week, 365 days per year. The secure HAN has a call- 
down engine that can be activated by state or local HAN administrators. 

i. Health Security Preparedness and Response (HSPR): A state-level program that is a joint 
effort with the Conference of Local Health Officials (CLHO) and Native American Tribes 
(Tribes) to develop public health systems to prepare for and respond to major threats, acute 
threats, and emergencies that impact the health of people in Oregon. 

j. Health Care Coalition (HCC): A coordinating body that incentivizes diverse and often 
competitive health care organizations and other community partners with differing priorities and 
objectives and reach to community members to work together to prepare for, respond to, and 
recover from emergencies and other incidents that impact the public’s health. 

k. Hospital Preparedness Program: (HPP) Grant funding from the U.S. Department of Health 
and Human Services Administration for Strategic Preparedness & Response (ASPR) in preparing 
for, responding to, and recovering from the adverse health effects of emergencies and disasters. 

l. Medical Countermeasures (MCM): Vaccines, antiviral drugs, antibiotics, antitoxins, etc. in 
support of treatment or prophylaxis to the identified population in accordance with public health 
guidelines or recommendations. This includes the Strategic National Stockpile (SNS), a CDC 
program developed to provide rapid delivery of pharmaceuticals, medical supplies, and 
equipment in the early hours of an ill-defined threat, a large shipment of specific items when a 
specific threat is known or technical assistance to distribute SNS material. 

m. Medical Reserve Corps (MRC): The Medical Reserve Corps is a network in the U.S. of 
community-based volunteer units. LPHAs with MRCs have developed these volunteer 
organizations to help meet the public health needs of their communities. 

n. MRC-STTRONG: Applicable only to LPHAs who have successfully been notified of their 
award as a sub-recipient of OHA’s MRC-STTRONG application. STTRONG is an ASPR 
Cooperative Agreement to strengthen the MRC network – focusing on emergency preparedness, 
response, and health Equity needs.  Funded projects will bolster community response 
capabilities, building on the invaluable role that the MRC played during our fight against 
COVID-19.  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 6 OF 41 PAGES 

o. National Incident Management System (NIMS): The U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
system for integrating effective practices in emergency preparedness and response into a 
comprehensive national framework for incident management. The NIMS enables emergency 
responders at all levels and in different disciplines to effectively manage incidents no matter 
what the cause, size or complexity.7 

p. Public Information Officer (PIO): The person responsible for communicating with the public, 
media, and/or coordinating with other agencies, as necessary, with incident-related information.8 

q. Public Health Accreditation Board: A non-profit organization dedicated to improving and 
protecting the health of the public by advancing the quality and performance of tribal, state, local 
and territorial public health departments.9 

r. Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response (PHEPR): Local public health 
programs designed to better prepare Oregon to prevent, protect, mitigate, respond to, and recover 
from emergencies with public health impacts. 

s. Public Health Preparedness Capability Surveys: A series of surveys sponsored by HSPR for 
capturing information from LPHAs for HSPR to report to CDC and inform trainings and 
planning for local partners. 

t. Regional Emergency Coordinator (REC): Regional staff that work within the Health Security, 
Preparedness, and Response section of the Oregon Health Authority. These staff support the 
Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response (PHEPR) and Healthcare Coalition (HCC) 
programs. The PHEPR REC supports local public health authorities’ public health emergency 
preparedness activities and assures completion of required activities as outlined in this PE-12 
document. 

3. Alignment with Modernization Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities. The 
activities and services that the LPHA has agreed to deliver under this Program Element align with 
Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities and the public health accountability metrics (if 
applicable), as follows (see Oregon’s Public Health Modernization Manual, 
(http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_man
ual.pdf): 
a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in Public Health Modernization 

Manual) 

Program Components Foundational Program Foundational Capabilities 

 

C
D

 C
on

tro
l 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

A
cc

es
s t

o 
cl

in
ic

al
 

pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

H
ea

lth
 E

qu
ity

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 E

pi
de

m
io

lo
gy

 

Po
lic

y 
&

 P
la

nn
in

g 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

Po
pu

la
tio

n 
H

ea
lth

 
D

ire
ct

 se
rv

ic
es

 

Asterisk (*) = Primary foundational program that aligns 
with each component 

X = Foundational capabilities that align with each 
component 

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 7 OF 41 PAGES 

X = Other applicable foundational programs 

Planning X X X X  X X X X X X X 
Partnerships and MOUs X X X X  X X X X X X X 
Surveillance and 
Assessment X X X X  X X X X X X X 
Response and Exercises X X X X  X X X X X X X 
Training and Education X X X X  X X X X X X X 

Note: Emergency preparedness crosses over all foundational programs. 
b. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 

achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metric: 
Not applicable 

c. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Modernization Process Measure: 
Not applicable 

4. Procedural and Operational Requirements. By accepting and using the Financial Assistance awarded 
under this Agreement and for this Program Element, LPHA agrees to conduct activities in accordance 
with the following requirements: 
a. Engage in activities as described in its approved PHEPR Work Plan and Integrated Preparedness 

Plan (IPP), which are due to OHA HSPR on or before August 15 and which has been approved 
by OHA HSPR by September 15. LPHA must use the PHEPR Work Plan Template Instructions 
and Guidance which OHA will provide to LPHA. 

b. Focus on health Equity by assessing and addressing Equity gaps during all facets of the disaster 
management cycle (prevention, protection, mitigation, response, recovery) to reduce and/or 
eliminate disproportionate impacts on historically underserved and marginalized populations, 
including but not limited to people with Access and Functional Needs and disabilities, 
racial/ethnic minorities, people who are economically disadvantaged, those whose second 
language is English, and rural and remote communities, etc. All response plans, procedures, 
workplans, exercises, or other activities performed under the PE-12 should address disparities 
and health inequities and work collaboratively with members of affected populations and 
community-based organizations to identify ways to minimize or eliminate disproportionate 
impacts and incorporate these solutions into all activities.2 

c. Use funds for this Program Element in accordance with its approved PHEPR budget, which is 
due to OHA HSPR on or before August 15 and which has been approved by OHA HSPR by 
September 15. LPHA must use the PHEPR Budget Template, which is set forth in Attachment 1, 
incorporated herein with this reference. 
(1) Contingent Emergency Response Funding: Such funding, as available, is subject to 

restrictions imposed by the CDC at the time of the emergency and would provide funding 
under circumstances when a delay in award would result in serious injury or other 
adverse impact to the public. 
Since the funding is contingent upon Congressional appropriations, whether contingent 
emergency response funding awards can be made will depend upon the facts and 



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 8 OF 41 PAGES 

circumstances that exist at the time of the emergency; the particular appropriation from 
which the awards would be made, including whether it contains limitations on its use; 
authorities for implementation; or other relevant factors. No activities are specified for 
this authorization at this time. 

(2) Non-Supplantation. Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element 
must not be used to supplant state, local, other non-federal, or other federal funds. 

(3) Public Health Preparedness Staffing. LPHA must identify a PHEPR Coordinator who 
is directly funded from the PHEPR grant. LPHA staff who receive PHEPR funds must 
have planned activities identified within the approved PHEPR Work Plan. The PHEPR 
Coordinator will be the OHA’s chief point of contact related to grant deliverables. LPHA 
must implement its PHEPR activities in accordance with its approved PHEPR Work 
Plan. 

(4) Use of Funds. Funds awarded to the LPHA under this Agreement for this Program 
Element may only be used for activities related to the CDC Public Health Emergency 
Preparedness and Response Capabilities in accordance with Attachment 2 (Use of 
Funds), incorporated herein with this reference and an approved PHEPR budget using the 
template set forth as Attachments 1 to this Program Element. 

(5) Modifications to Budget. Modifications to the budget exceeding a total of $5,000, 
adding a new line item, or changing the indirect line item by any amount require 
submission of a revised budget to the Regional Emergency Coordinator (REC) and final 
receipt of approval from the HSPR fiscal officer. 

(6) Conflict between Documents. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the 
provisions of the approved PHEPR Work Plan or PHEPR Budget and the provisions of 
this Agreement, this Agreement shall control. 

(7) Unspent funds. PHEPR funding is not guaranteed as a carryover to a subsequent fiscal 
year if funds are unspent in any given fiscal year. 

d. Statewide and Regional Coordination: LPHA must coordinate and participate with state, 
regional, and local Emergency Support Function partners and stakeholders to include, but not 
limited to, other public health and health care programs, HCCs, emergency management 
agencies, EMS providers, behavioral/mental health agencies, community-based organizations 
(CBOs), older adult-serving organizations, and educational agencies and state childcare lead 
agencies as applicable.10 
(1) Attendance by LPHA leadership, PHEPR coordinator, or other staff involved in 

preparedness activities or conferences is strongly encouraged. 
(2) Participation in emergency preparedness subcommittees, work groups and projects for 

the sustainment of public health emergency preparedness and response as appropriate is 
required. 

(3) LPHA must collaborate with HCC partners to develop and maintain plans, conduct 
training and exercises, and respond to public health threats and emergencies using a 
whole-community approach to preparedness management that includes:10 
(a) Prioritizing health Equity as referenced in Section 4b. 
(b) Coordination with community-based organizations. 
(c) Development or expansion of child-focused planning and partnerships. 
(d) Engaging field/area office on aging. 



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 9 OF 41 PAGES 

(e) Engaging behavioral health partners and stakeholders. 
(4) LPHA shall participate and engage in planning at the local level in all required statewide 

exercises as referenced in the Workplan Minimum Requirements and IPP Blank 
Template tabs, which OHA has provided to LPHA. 

(5) LPHA shall participate in activities associated with local, regional, or statewide emerging 
threats or incidents as identified by HSPR or LPHA that includes timely assessment and 
sharing of essential elements of information for identification and investigation of an 
incident with public health impact, as agreed upon by HSPR and the CLHO Emergency 
Preparedness and Response subcommittee.10 

(6) LPHA shall work to develop and maintain a portfolio of community partnerships to 
support prevention, preparedness, mitigation, response and recovery efforts. Portfolio 
must include viable contact information from local community-based organizations and 
community sectors as defined by the CDC: business; community leadership; cultural and 
faith-based groups and organizations; emergency management; healthcare; human 
services; housing and sheltering; media; mental/behavioral health; office of aging or its 
equivalent; education and childcare settings. 

(7) As applicable for MRC-STTRONG recipients only, LPHA shall coordinate with the 
MRC Unit Coordinator, volunteers, the OHA MRC State Program Office, the National 
MRC Program, community partners, and any other necessary stakeholders for the 
duration of the MRC-STTRONG project period (June 1, 2023 – May 31, 2025).   

(8) As applicable for HPP recipients only, LPHA shall coordinate with the HPP Regional 
Emergency Coordinator at the OHA MRC State Program Office for the duration of the 
HPP project period (July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2024).  

e. Public Health Preparedness Capability Survey: LPHA must complete all applicable Public 
Health Preparedness Capability Survey(s) sponsored by HSPR by November 1 of each year or an 
applicable Due Date based on CDC requirements.1 

f. PHEPR Work Plan: PHEPR Work Plans must be written with clear and measurable objectives 
in support of the CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response Capabilities with 
timelines and include: 
(1) At least three broad program goals that address gaps, operationalize plans, and guide the 

following PHEPR Work Plan activities. 
(a) Planning 
(b) Training and education 
(c) Exercises. 
(d) Community Education and Outreach and Partner Collaboration. 
(e) Administrative and Fiscal activities. 

(2) Activities should include or address health Equity considerations as outlined in Section  
4b. 

(3) Local public health leadership will review and approve PHEPR Work Plans. 
g. PHEPR Work Plan Performance: LPHA must complete all minimum requirements of the PE- 

12 by June 30 each year. If LPHA does not meet the minimum requirements of the PE-12 for 
each of the three years during a triennial review period, not due to unforeseen public health 
events, it may not be eligible to receive funding under this Program Element in the next fiscal 
year. Minimum requirements are delineated in the designated tab of the PHEPR Work Plan 



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 10 OF 41 PAGES 

Template which OHA has provided to LPHA. Work completed in response to a HSPR-required 
exercise, a response to an uncommon disease outbreak, or other uncommon event of significance 
that requires an LPHA response and is tied to the CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness 
and Response Capabilities may, upon HSPR approval, be used to replace PHEPR Work Plan 
activities interrupted or delayed. 

h. 24/7/365 Emergency Contact Capability: 
(1) LPHA must establish and maintain a single telephone number whereby, physicians, 

hospitals, other health care providers, OHA and the public can report public health 
emergencies within the LPHA service area. 
(a) The contact number must be easy to find through sources in which the LPHA 

typically makes information available including local telephone directories, 
traditional websites, and social media pages. It is acceptable for the publicly listed 
phone number to provide after-hours contact information by means of a recorded 
message. LPHA must list and maintain both the switchboard number and the 
24/7/365 numbers on the HAN. 

(b) The telephone number must be operational 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 
days a year and be an eleven-digit telephone number available to callers from 
outside the local emergency dispatch. LPHA may use an answering service or 
their Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) in this process, provided that the 
eleven-digit telephone number of the PSAP is made available for callers from 
outside the locality.2 

(c) The LPHA telephone number described above must be answered by a 
knowledgeable person with the ability to properly route the call to a local public 
health administrator or designee. 

(2) An LPHA official must respond within 60 minutes, to calls received on 24/7/365 
telephone number, during statewide communication drills and quarterly tests.2 
(a) Quarterly test calls to the 24/7/365 telephone line will be conducted by HSPR 

program staff. 
(b) Following a quarterly test, LPHA must take any corrective action on any 

identified deficiency within 30 days of such test or communication drills, to the 
best of their ability. 

i. HAN: 
(1) A HAN Administrator must be appointed for LPHA and this person’s name and contact 

information must be provided to the HSPR REC and the State HAN Coordinator. 
(2) The HAN Administrator must: 

(a) Agree to the HAN Security Agreement and State of Oregon Terms and 
Conditions. 

(b) Complete appropriate HAN training for their role. 
(c) Ensure local HAN user and county role directory is maintained (add, modify and 

delete users; make sure users have the correct license). 
(d) Act as a single point of contact for all LPHA HAN issues, user groups, and 

training. 
(e) Serve as the LPHA authority on all HAN related access (excluding hospitals and 

Tribes). 



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 11 OF 41 PAGES 

(f) Coordinate with the State HAN Coordinator to ensure roles are correctly 
distributed within each county. 

(g) Ensure participation in OHA Emergency Support Function 8 (Health and 
Medical) tactical communications exercises. Deliverable associated with this 
exercise will be the test of the LPHA HAN system roles via alert confirmation 
for: Health Officer, Communicable Disease (CD) Coordinator(s), Preparedness 
Coordinator, PIO and LPHA County HAN Administrator within one hour.2 

(h) Initiate at least one local call down exercise/ drill for LPHA staff annually. If the 
statewide HAN is not used for this process, LPHA must demonstrate through 
written procedures how public health staff and responding partners are notified 
during emergencies. 

(i) Perform general administration for all local implementation of the HAN system in 
their respective organizations. 

(j) Review LPHA HAN users two times annually to ensure users are updated, 
assigned their appropriate roles and that appropriate users are deactivated. 

(k) Facilitate in the development of the HAN accounts for new LPHA users. 
j. Integrated Preparedness Plan (IPP): LPHA must annually submit to HSPR on or before 

August 15, an updated IPP as part of their annual work plan update.1 The IPP must meet the 
following conditions: 
(1) Demonstrate continuous improvement and progress toward increased capability to 

perform functions and tasks associated with the CDC Public Health Emergency 
Preparedness and Response Capabilities. 

(2) Address health Equity considerations as outlined in Section 4b. 
(3) Include priorities that address lessons learned from previous exercises events, or incidents 

as described in the LPHA’s After Action Reports (AAR)/ Improvement Plans (IP). 
(4) LPHA must work with Emergency Management, local health care partners and other 

community partners to integrate exercises and align IPPs, as appropriate. 
(5) Identify at least two exercises per year if LPHA’s population is greater than 10,000 and 

one exercise per year if LPHA’s population is less than 10,000. 
(6) Identify a cycle of exercises that increase in complexity over a three-year period, 

progressing from discussion-based exercises (e.g., seminars, workshops, tabletop 
exercises, games) to operation-based exercises (e.g., drills, functional exercises and full-
scale exercises); exercises of similar complexity are permissible within any given year of 
the plan. 

(7) A HSPR-required exercise, a response to an uncommon disease outbreak, or other 
uncommon event of significance that requires an LPHA response and is tied to the CDC 
Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response Capabilities may, upon HSPR 
approval, be used to satisfy exercise requirements. 

  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 12 OF 41 PAGES 

(8) For an exercise or incident to qualify, under this requirement the exercise or incident 
must: 
(a) Exercise: 

LPHA must: 

• Submit to HSPR REC 30 days in advance of each exercise an exercise 
notification or exercise plan that includes a description of the exercise, 
exercise objectives, CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness and 
Response Capabilities addressed, a list of invited participants, and a list 
of exercise planning team members. An incident/exercise notification 
form that includes the required notification elements is included in 
Attachment 3 and is incorporated herein with this reference. 

• Involve two or more participants in the planning process. 

• Involve two or more public health staff and/ or related partners as active 
participants. 

• Submit to HSPR REC an After-Action Report that includes an 
Improvement Plan within 60 days of every exercise completed. An 
improvement plan template is included as part of the incident/exercise 
notification form in Attachment 3. 

(b) Incident: 
During an incident, LPHA must: 

• Submit LPHA incident objectives or Incident Action Plan to HSPR REC 
within 48 hours of receiving notification of an incident that requires an 
LPHA response. An incident/exercise notification form that includes the 
required notification elements is included in Attachment 3. 

• Submit to HSPR REC an After-Action Report that includes an 
Improvement Plan within 60 days of every incident or public health 
response completed. An improvement plan template is included as part of 
the incident/exercise notification form in Attachment 3. 

(9) LPHA must coordinate exercise design and planning with local Emergency Management 
and other partners for community engagement, as appropriate.2 

(10) Staff responsible for emergency planning and response roles must be trained for their 
respective roles consistent with their local emergency plans and according to CDC Public 
Health Emergency Preparedness and Response Capabilities,1 the Public Health 
Accreditation Board9, and the National Incident Management System.7 The training 
portion of the plan must: 
(a) Include training on how to discharge LPHA statutory responsibility to take 

measures to control communicable disease in accordance with applicable statute.  
(b) Identify and train appropriate LPHA staff 11 to prepare for public health 

emergency response roles and general emergency response based on the local 
identified hazards. 

k. Maintaining Training Records: LPHA must maintain training records that demonstrate NIMS 
compliance for all local public health staff for their respective emergency response roles.7 

  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 13 OF 41 PAGES 

l. Plans: LPHA must maintain and execute emergency preparedness procedures and plans as a 
component of its jurisdictional Emergency Operations Plan. 
(1) LPHA must establish and maintain at a minimum the following plans: 

(a) Base Plan. 
(b) Medical Countermeasure Dispensing and Distribution (MCMDD) plan.12 
(c) Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP)10 
(d) Communications and Information Plan. 

(2) All plans, annexes, and appendices must: 
(a) Be updated whenever an After-Action Report improvement item is identified as 

requiring a change or biennially at a minimum, 
(b) Address, as appropriate, the CDC Public Health Emergency Preparedness and 

Response Capabilities based on the local identified hazards, 
(c) Be functional and operational by June 30, 2023,10 
(d) Comply with the NIMS,7 
(e) Include a record of changes that includes a brief description, the date, and the 

author of the change made, and 
(f) Include health Equity considerations as outlined in Section 4b. 

m. MRC-STTRONG: Any deliverables resulting from this project should recognize ASPR, OHA, 
and MRC sponsoring organizations for their respective contributions to the body of work.  
(1) Roles and responsibilities 

LPHA shall: 
(a) Manage the approved MRC-STTRONG projects identified in finalized MRC-

STTRONG application. Before use of the federal ASPR logo, LPHA must consult 
with the OHA MRC State Program. 

(b) Participate in an annual OHA MRC State Program check-in:  LPHA shall attend 
two check-in meetings with OHA MRC State Program and other sub-recipients to 
provide progress reports and engage collaboratively with other units for resource 
sharing.  

(c) Complete performance measurement and evaluation tasks including the quarterly 
and annual reporting, LPHA status report (spent/unspent/encumbered), , and 
annual check-ins with the OHA MRC State Program Office. 

(2) Deliverables: 
(a) Standard Workplan: LPHA shall populate and maintain a workplan template 

provided by the OHA MRC State Program Office.  

• This workplan must be referenced during the two annual OHA MRC State 
Program check-ins to discuss and monitor progress.  

• As applicable, the workplan must integrate steps that incorporate 
population and membership driven methodologies for resource allocations 
that center equitable distribution of material or consumable resources and 
training resources.  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 14 OF 41 PAGES 

(b) Reporting Requirement: LPHA shall submit all required reports and any 
additional reporting as requested, throughout the course of the project. 

(c) LPHA shall present monthly to the MRC Unit Coordinator network during the 1st 
year (7/1/2023-6/30/2024) and at least once to the coordinator in the 2nd year of 
the project (7/1/2024-6/30/2025), regarding progress or outcomes of their project. 

(d) National preparedness network abstracts: LPHA is encouraged to submit abstracts 
to present at state and national preparedness conferences and other technical 
assistance resource sharing platforms. 

• Limitations and Restrictions: The following special conditions are in 
place for the Terms and Conditions of funding under this Program 
Element PE12-04: Purchase of uniforms: These supplies must meet the 
guidelines established for use as personal protective equipment found in 
“MRC Safety Equipment Guidelines for MRC-STTRONG Awardees” in 
Attachment 4 which is incorporated herein with this reference. 

• Uniform components must be returned to the respective unit/program 
office at the end of the event/project/volunteer tenure. Note: If the 
federal/ASPR MRC logo is expected to be utilized or placed on any items, 
please ensure to consult with a member of the MRC- STTRONG Project 
Team on the logo use guidelines. 

(e) Change Approval Requirements: Any deviations from what was approved in 
the original application (for example, key personnel changes, work plan changes, 
budget changes) must be reviewed and approved by the OHA MRC State 
Program Office, Grants Management Specialist and the ASPR’s Project Officer. 
Contact the OHA MRC State Program Office to initiate workplan/budget 
changes.  

5. General Revenue and Expense Reporting. LPHA must complete an “Oregon Health Authority Public 
Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report” located in Exhibit C of this Agreement. These 
reports must be submitted to OHA each quarter on the following schedule: 

Fiscal Quarter Due Date 

First: July 1 – September 30 October 30 

Second: October 1 – December 31 January 30 

Third: January 1 – March 31 April 30 

Fourth: April 1 – June 30 August 30 

a. MRC-STTRONG: LPHA have the following expectations for revenue and expense reporting 
(1) Annual Federal Financial Report: Due to the OHA MRC State Program Office  
(2) LPHA Status Report: Due to the OHA MRC State Program Office no later than March 

2, 2025. The LPHA Status Report communicates the status of allocated funds 
(spent/unspent/encumbered) 3-months prior to end of project period (March 2, 2025).  
The OHA MRC State Program will provide a reporting template to LPHA. 

6. Reporting Requirements. 
a. PHEPR Work Plan. LPHA must implement its PHEPR activities in accordance with its OHA 

HSPR-approved PHEPR Work Plan. Dependent upon extenuating circumstances, modifications 
to this PHEPR Work Plan may only be made with OHA HSPR agreement and approval. 



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 15 OF 41 PAGES 

Proposed PHEPR Work Plan will be due on or before August 15. Final approved PHEPR Work 
Plan will be due on or before September 15. 

b. Mid-year and end of year PHEPR Work Plan reviews. LPHA must complete PHEPR Work 
Plan updates in coordination with their HSPR REC on at least a minimum of a semi-annual 
basis. 
(1) Mid-year work plan reviews may be conducted between October 1 and March 31. 
(2) End of year work plan reviews may be conducted between April 1 and August 15. 

c. Triennial Review. This review will be completed in conjunction with the statewide Triennial 
Review schedule as determined by the Office of the State Public Health Director. A year-end 
work plan review may be scheduled in conjunction with a Triennial Review. This Agreement 
will be integrated into the Triennial Review Process. 

d. Integrated Preparedness Plan (IPP). LPHA must annually submit an IPP to HSPR REC on or 
before August 15. Final approved IPP will be due on or before September 15. 

e. Exercise Notification. LPHA must submit to HSPR REC 30 days in advance of each exercise an 
exercise notification that includes a description of the exercise, exercise objectives, CDC Public 
Health Emergency Preparedness and Response Capabilities addressed, a list of invited 
participants, and a list of exercise planning team members. 

f. Response Documentation. LPHA must submit LPHA incident objectives or an Incident Action 
Plan to HPSR REC within 48 hours of receiving notification of an incident that requires an 
LPHA response. 

g. After-Action Report / Improvement Plan. LPHA must submit to HSPR REC an After-Action 
Report/Improvement Plan within 60 days of every exercise, incident, or public health response 
completed. 

h. MRC-STTRONG LPHA Progress Reports: These required reports aim to capture impact of 
MRC STTRONG funded activities as they relate to ASPR Strategic Focus Areas, MRC 
STTRONG goals, and expanded emergency preparedness and response capabilities. 
(1) Annual Progress Reports: If LPHA is funded under this PE12-04, LPHA shall submit 

annual program reports. As part of the progress report financial information will be 
reported both per major category of expense and by objective. OHA ASPR will provide a 
template for these reports. 
(a) Scheduled Due Dates for annual reports from LPHA to the MRC State Program 

(OHA-PHD): 

STTRONG 
Budget Period Annual Report Due Date 

2023 - 2024  August 1, 2024 

2024 - 2025  August 1, 2025 

 
  

https://aspr.hhs.gov/stratplan/Pages/default.aspx
https://asprtracie.hhs.gov/technical-resources/resource/4271/2017-2022-health-care-preparedness-and-response-capabilities


OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 16 OF 41 PAGES 

(2) Quarterly Progress Reports: LPHA, if funded under this PE12-04 shall submit 
quarterly program progress reports. As part of the progress report financial information 
will be reported both per major category of expense and by objective. ASPR will provide 
a template for these reports. 
(a) Scheduled Due Dates for quarterly reports from LPHA to the MRC State Program 

(OHA-PHD): 

BP 
Quarter Quarter Period Quarterly Report 

Due Date 

2023 - 2024 Budget Period 

1 June – August  September 15, 2023 

2 September – 
November  

December 15, 2023 

3 December – 
February  

March 15, 2024 

4 March – May  June 14, 2024 
2024 - 2025 Budget Period 
1 June – August  September 13, 2024 

2 September – 
November  

December 13, 2024 

3 December – 
February  

March 14, 2025 

4 March – May  June 13, 2025 

(3) Other MRC-STTRONG Reports: Additional reports may apply to LPHA’s project. 
OHA will contact you if it requires additional information to be submitted to ASPR.  
(a) MRC National Website: For any activities reported in the MRC activity 

reporting system that are affiliated with your MRC-STTRONG project, please 
include key words “MRC-STTRONG” in the activity report and/or description. 

(b) Other Reporting Requirements as identified by OHA throughout the project 
period. 

7. Performance Measures: LPHA will progress local emergency preparedness planning efforts in a 
manner designed to achieve the 15 CDC National Standards for State and Local Planning for Public 
Health Emergency Preparedness and is evaluated by Mid-year, End of Year and Triennial Reviews.1 

  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 17 OF 41 PAGES 

ATTACHMENT 1*1 
 
 

 

* A fillable template is available from a HSPR REC 
 
  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 18 OF 41 PAGES 

Attachment 2: Use of 
Funds 

 
Subject to CDC grant requirements, funds may be used for the following: 

a. Reasonable program purposes, including personnel, travel, supplies, and services. 
b. To supplement but not supplant existing state or federal funds for activities described in the budget. 
c. To purchase basic, non-motorized trailers with prior approval from the CDC OGS. 
d. For overtime for individuals directly associated (listed in personnel costs) with the award with prior 

approval from HSPR. 
e. For deployment of PHEPR-funded personnel, equipment, and supplies during a local emergency, in- state 

governor-declared emergency, or via the Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC). 
f. To lease vehicles to be used as means of transportation for carrying people or goods, e.g., passenger cars or 

trucks and electrical or gas-driven motorized carts with prior approval from HSPR. 
g. To purchase material-handling equipment (MHE) such as industrial or warehouse-use trucks to be used to 

move materials, such as forklifts, lift trucks, turret trucks, etc. Vehicles must be of a type not licensed to travel 
on public roads with prior approval from HSPR. 

h. To purchase caches of antibiotics for use by first responders and their families to ensure the health and 
safety of the public health workforce. 

i. To support appropriate accreditation activities that meet the Public Health Accreditation Board's 
preparedness-related standards 

Subject to CDC grant requirements, funds may not be used for the following: 
a. Research. 
b. Clinical care except as allowed by law. Clinical care, per the CDC Funding Opportunity Announcement 

FOA, is defined as "directly managing the medical care and treatment of patients." 
c. The purchase of furniture or equipment - unless clearly identified in grant application. 
d. Reimbursement of pre-award costs (unless approved by CDC in writing). 
e. Publicity or propaganda purposes, for the preparation, distribution, or use of any material designed to 

support or defeat the enactment of legislation before any legislative body. 
f. The salary or expenses of any grant or contract recipient, or agent acting for such recipient, related to any 

activity designed to influence the enactment of legislation, appropriations, regulation, administrative action, 
or Executive order proposed or pending before any legislative body. 

g. Construction or major renovations. 
h. Payment or reimbursement of backfilling costs for staff. 
i. Paying the salary of an individual at a rate in excess of Executive Level II or $187,000.00 per year. 
j. The purchase of clothing such as jeans, cargo pants, polo shirts, jumpsuits, or t-shirts. 
k. The purchase or support of animals for labs, including mice. 
l. The purchase of a house or other living quarter for those under quarantine. 
m. To purchase vehicles to be used as means of transportation for carrying people or goods, such as passenger 

cars or trucks and electrical or gas-driven motorized carts. 
  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 19 OF 41 PAGES 

 
ATTACHMENT 3* 

 
 
  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 20 OF 41 PAGES 

 
 
  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 21 OF 41 PAGES 

Attachment 4 
 

 
 

  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 22 OF 41 PAGES 

References 
 
 

1. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2018). Public health emergency preparedness and response 
capabilities. Atlanta, GA: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Retrieved from 
https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm  

2. Oregon Public Health Division (September 2017) Public Health Modernization Manual. Retrieved from 
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/ph/About/TaskForce/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf 
58-62 

3. U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Office of the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and 
Response. At-Risk Individuals with Access and Functional Needs. Retrieved from 
https://www.phe.gov/Preparedness/planning/abc/Pages/at-risk.aspx 

4. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C.A. § 12101 et seq. as amended. Retrieved from 
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2009-title42/html/USCODE-2009-title42-chap126.htm 

5. Ira P. Robbins, Lessons from Hurricane Katrina: Prison Emergency Preparedness as a Constitutional 
Imperative, 42 U. MICH. J. L. REFORM 1 (2008). Retrieved from: 
https://repository.law.umich.edu/mjlr/vol42/iss1/2 

6. Definition from Office of Governor Kate Brown, State of Oregon Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Action 
Plan (August 2021). https://www.oregon.gov/lcd/Commission/Documents/2021-09_Item- 2_Directors-
Report_Attachment-A_DEI-Action-Plan.pdf 

7. National Incident Management System Third Edition (October 2017). Retrieved from 
https://www.fema.gov/national-incident-management-system 

8. Federal Emergency Management Agency. (December 2020). National Incident Management System Basic 
Guidance for Public Information Officers. Retrieved from 
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_nims-basic-guidance-public-information- 
officers_12-2020.pdf 

9. Public Health Accreditation Board. Retrieved from https://phaboard.org/ 
10. U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Centers for Disease Control. (Public Health Emergency 

Preparedness (PHEP) Cooperative Agreement) Retrieved from: https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-
opportunity.html?oppId=310318. 10. 

11. Oregon Office of Emergency Management. (2021). National Incident Management System – Who takes 
what? Retrieved from: https://www.oregon.gov/oem/Documents/NIMS_Who_Takes_What_2021.pdf 

12. Presidential Policy Directive-8: National Preparedness (2011). Retrieved from 
https://www.dhs.gov/presidential-policy-directive-8-national-preparedness 
 

 
 
  

https://www.cdc.gov/cpr/readiness/capabilities.htm
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/ph/About/TaskForce/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
https://www.phe.gov/Preparedness/planning/abc/Pages/at-risk.aspx
http://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2009-title42/html/USCODE-2009-title42-chap126.htm
https://repository.law.umich.edu/mjlr/vol42/iss1/2
https://www.oregon.gov/lcd/Commission/Documents/2021-09_Item-2_Directors-Report_Attachment-A_DEI-Action-Plan.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/lcd/Commission/Documents/2021-09_Item-2_Directors-Report_Attachment-A_DEI-Action-Plan.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/lcd/Commission/Documents/2021-09_Item-2_Directors-Report_Attachment-A_DEI-Action-Plan.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/national-incident-management-system
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_nims-basic-guidance-public-information-officers_12-2020.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_nims-basic-guidance-public-information-officers_12-2020.pdf
https://phaboard.org/
http://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318
http://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=310318
http://www.oregon.gov/oem/Documents/NIMS_Who_Takes_What_2021.pdf
https://www.dhs.gov/presidential-policy-directive-8-national-preparedness


OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 23 OF 41 PAGES 

Program Element #44: School-Based Health Centers (SBHC) 
OHA Program Responsible for Program Element:   Public Health Division/Center for Prevention & 
Health Promotion/ Adolescent Health, ScreenWise & Reproductive Health 
1. Description. Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in 

accordance with, and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below, to deliver School-
Based Health Centers (SBHC) Services.  SBHC Services must only be used to support activities related 
to planning, oversight, maintenance, administration, operation, and delivery of services within one or 
more SBHC as required by OHA’s SBHC funding formula. 
Many school-aged youth do not routinely access preventive health care services due to barriers such 
as insurance, cost, transportation and concerns around confidentiality. According to the 2020 Oregon 
Student Health Survey, approximately 41% of 11th graders and 44% of 8th graders reported having not 
seen a doctor or nurse for a check-up in the last 12 months.  SBHCs provide physical, mental and 
preventive health services to all students regardless of their ability to pay at an easily accessible 
location for students and families.  
This Program Element and all changes to this Program Element are effective the first day of the month 
noted in Issue Date of Exhibit C Financial Assistance Award unless otherwise noted in Comments and 
Footnotes of the Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award. 

2. Definitions Specific to School-Based Health Centers. 
a. Biennium: June 1 to June 30 of the specified years as set forth on the first page of this 

Agreement. 
b. Culturally and Linguistically Responsive Services: means the provision of effective, 

equitable, understandable and respectful quality care and services that are responsive to diverse 
cultural health beliefs and practices, preferred languages, health literacy and other 
communication needs.  

c. School-Based Health Center (“SBHC”): has the meaning given the term in ORS 413.225 
d. SBHC Standards for Certification: In order to be certified as a SBHC, a SBHC must meet all 

requirements for certification in the SBHC Standards for Certification.  SBHC Standards for 
Certification are found at:  
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/S
CHOOLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Documents/SBHC%20Certification/SBHCstandardsforcer
tificationV4.pdf  

3. Alignment with Modernization Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities. The 
activities and services that the LPHA has agreed to deliver under this Program Element align with 
Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities and the public health accountability metrics (if 
applicable), as follows (see Public Health Modernization Manual at:  
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_man
ual.pdf):   

  

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/SCHOOLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Documents/SBHC%20Certification/SBHCstandardsforcertificationV4.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/SCHOOLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Documents/SBHC%20Certification/SBHCstandardsforcertificationV4.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/SCHOOLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Documents/SBHC%20Certification/SBHCstandardsforcertificationV4.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 24 OF 41 PAGES 

a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in Public Health Modernization 
Manual) 

Program Components  Foundational Program Foundational Capabilities 

 

C
D

 C
on

tro
l 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

A
cc

es
s t

o 
cl

in
ic

al
 

pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

H
ea

lth
 e

qu
ity

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 E

pi
de

m
io

lo
gy

 

Po
lic

y 
&

 P
la

nn
in

g 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 Po
pu

la
tio

n 
H

ea
lth

 
D

ire
ct

 se
rv

ic
es

 

Asterisk (*) = Primary foundational program that 
aligns with each component 
X = Other applicable foundational programs 

X = Foundational capabilities that align with 
each component 

SBHC Standards for 
Certification Compliance X X  X * X X X X X   
Mental Health Expansion 
Grants  X  X * X X X X X   
School-Linked Telehealth 
Grant  X  X * X X X X X   

b. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metric, Health Outcome Measure:  
Not applicable 

c. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system 
achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metric, Local Public Health Process 
Measure:  
Not applicable 

4. Procedural and Operational Requirements. By accepting and using the Financial Assistance awarded 
under this Agreement and for this Program Element, LPHA agrees to conduct activities in accordance 
with the following requirements:  
a. Use funds provided under this Agreement for SBHC Services only to support activities related to 

planning, oversight, maintenance, administration, operation, and delivery of services within one 
or more SBHC as required by OHA’s SBHC funding formula. 

b. Deliver all SBHC Services in accordance with OAR Chapter 333, Division 28, a copy of which 
is accessible on the Internet at   
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action?selectedDivision=1243  

c. The SBHC Standards for Certification including administrative, operations and reporting 
guidance, and minimum standards and requirements in the areas of: Certification Process, 

https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action?selectedDivision=1243


OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 25 OF 41 PAGES 

Sponsoring Agency, Facility, Operations/Staffing, Comprehensive Pediatric Care, Data 
Collection/Reporting, and Billing.  

d. Provide oversight and technical assistance so that each SBHC in the LPHA’s jurisdiction meets 
SBHC Certification Requirements as set forth in OAR 333-028-0220. 

e. Assure to OHA that all certification documentation and subsequent follow-up items are 
completed by the requested date(s) in accordance with the OHA’s certification review cycle as 
set forth in OAR 333-028-0230. 

f. This Section 4.f. is only applicable to LPHA if LPHA is selected to receive a Mental Health 
Expansion Grant from OHA. LPHA agrees to conduct Mental Health Expansion Grant activities 
in accordance with the following requirements: 
(1) Use funds provided under this Agreement to support mental health staff capacity (FTE) 

within the school-based health center system. Funding can used to support multiple 
positions within each SBHC.  Funding must be used to provide Culturally and 
Linguistically Responsive Health Services that are inclusive and welcoming for youth 
from diverse backgrounds. 

(2) Use funds in compliance with the full list of SBHC Mental Health Expansion Grant 
award requirements that are posted on the OHA website: 
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSC
HOOL/SCHOOLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Pages/mh-expansion-grant.aspx  

g. This Section 4.g. is only applicable to LPHA if LPHA is selected to receive a School-Linked 
Telehealth Grant from OHA. LPHA agrees to conduct School-Linked Telehealth Grant 
activities in accordance with the following requirements: 

(1) SBHC must be the distant site (i.e., where the provider is located) that provides telehealth 
in originating sites (i.e., where the patient is receiving the telehealth service) that are 
schools without SBHCs as outlined in HB 2591 (Chapter 619, Or Laws, 2021).  

(2) Funds provided under this Agreement must be used to support a School-Linked 
Telehealth Pilot Project by: 
(a) Supporting staffing, the purchase of technical equipment, costs associated with 

conducting a needs assessment, and/or supporting technical assistance related to 
School-Linked Telehealth Pilot planning and operations; and  

(b) Supporting increased school nurse capacity and offsetting costs incurred by the 
school district/educational service district’s participation in the pilot project. 

(3) LPHA must participate in monthly technical assistance or learning collaborative calls 
with other School-Linked Telehealth Grantees and engage in evaluation planning and 
data collection with the OHA SBHC State Program Office (SPO).  

h. This Section 4.h. is only applicable to LPHA if LPHA is selected to receive one-time funding 
from OHA. OHA occasionally provides one-time grant funding to support activities related to 
planning, oversight, maintenance, administration, operation, and delivery of services within one 
or more SBHCs. LPHA will be notified when these one-time grant funding opportunities become 
available.  
(1) If one-time only funding becomes available, OHA will issue one-time funding guidance 

and LPHA may submit an application outlining activities, timeline and budget. The 
application is subject to approval by the OHA School-Based Health Center program. 

https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/SCHOOLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Pages/mh-expansion-grant.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/SCHOOLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Pages/mh-expansion-grant.aspx


OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 26 OF 41 PAGES 

(2) If LPHA is awarded one-time grant funds, it will fulfill all activities and use funds in 
accordance with funding guidance and OHA-approved application and submit reports as 
prescribed by OHA. 

5. General Revenue and Expense Reporting. LPHA must complete an “Oregon Health Authority Public 
Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report” located in Exhibit C of this Agreement each quarter 
of the Agreement.  These reports must be submitted to OHA each quarter on the following schedule:  

Fiscal Quarter Due Date 

First:  July 1 – September 30 October 30 

Second:  October 1 – December 31 January 30 

Third:  January 1 – March 31 April 30 

Fourth:  April 1 – June 30 August 20 

6. Reporting Requirements.  
a. LPHA must submit client encounter data in a form acceptable to OHA and in accordance with 

the SBHC Standards for Certification two times a year, no later than January 31 for the previous 
calendar year (July 1 – Dec 31) and no later than July 15 for the preceding service year (July 1 –
June 30). 

b. LPHA must submit annual SBHC financial data via the SPO’s online Operational Profile in the 
form acceptable to OHA no later than October 1 for the preceding service year (July 1-June 30). 

c. LPHA must submit annual hours of operation and staffing via the SPO’s online Operational 
Profile in the form acceptable to OHA no later than October 1 for the current service year. 

d. LPHA must submit completed annual patient satisfaction survey data no later than June 30. 
e. LPHA must complete the triennial School-Based Health Alliance SBHC Census Survey. Current 

SBHC Census Survey timeline and details can be found at http://www.sbh4all.org/  
f. If LPHA received a Mental Health Expansion Grant from OHA, LPHA must track data related to 

mental health encounters as outlined in the SBHC Standards for Certification.  
g. If LPHA received a Mental Health Expansion Grant from OHA, LPHA must participate in 

check-in meetings (via phone or email) with the SPO and submit 3 mid-project reports and a 
final project report. OHA will work with the LPHA to schedule calls and supply the due date and 
required format for the reports.  

h. If LPHA received a School-Linked Telehealth Grant, LPHA must submit a mid-project report 
and a final project report. OHA will work with the LPHA to supply the due date and required 
format for the reports. 

7. Performance Measures.  
LPHA must submit annual SBHC KPM data in a form acceptable to OHA and in accordance with the 
SBHC Standards for Certification no later than October 1 for the preceding service year (July 1 –June 
30).  The current list of KPMs can be found at: 
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/SCHO
OLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Pages/data-requirements.aspx  

 
  

http://www.sbh4all.org/
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/SCHOOLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Pages/data-requirements.aspx
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/SCHOOLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Pages/data-requirements.aspx


OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 27 OF 41 PAGES 

Program Element #51: Public Health Modernization 
OHA Program Responsible for Program Element:   
Public Health Division/Office of the State Public Health Director/Policy and Partnerships Unit 
1. Description. Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in 

accordance with, and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below, to deliver Public 
Health Modernization.  
Section 1: LPHA Leadership, Governance and Implementation 
a. Establish leadership and governance to plan for full implementation of public health 

modernization. Demonstrate strategies to build and sustain infrastructure for public health 
Foundational Capabilities with a focus on health equity and cultural responsiveness throughout 
and within each Foundational Capability. This may include developing business models for the 
effective and efficient delivery of public health services, developing and/or enhancing 
community partnerships to build a sustainable public health system, and implementing workforce 
diversity and leadership development initiatives.  

b. Implement strategies to improve local infrastructure for communicable disease control, 
emergency preparedness and response, environmental health, and health equity and 
cultural responsiveness. In partnership with communities, implement local strategies to prevent 
and control communicable disease, strengthen emergency preparedness and response planning, 
protect communities from environmental health threats, and reduce health inequities.  

Section 2: Regional Public Health Service Delivery  
a. Demonstrate regional approaches for providing public health services. This may include 

establishing and maintaining a Regional Partnership of local public health authorities (LPHAs) 
and other stakeholders, utilizing regional staffing models, or implementing regional projects.  

b. Implement regional strategies to improve Regional Infrastructure for communicable 
disease control, emergency preparedness and response, environmental health, and health 
equity and cultural responsiveness. Implement regional strategies to prevent and control 
communicable disease, strengthen emergency preparedness and response planning, protect 
communities from environmental health threats, and reduce health inequities. 

Section 3: COVID-19 Public Health Workforce 
Establish, expand, train and sustain the public health workforce gained during the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  Demonstrate strategies to ensure long-term improvements for health 
equity and cultural responsiveness, public health and community prevention, preparedness, 
response and recovery, including workforce diversity recruitment, retention and workforce 
development. 

Section 4:  Public Health Infrastructure: Workforce 
a. Recruit and hire new public health staff, with a focus on seeking applicants from communities 

and populations served to provide additional capacity and expertise in the Foundational 
Capabilities and Foundational Programs identified by the LPHA as critical workforce needs  

b. Support, sustain and retain public health staff through systems changes and supports, as well 
as workforce development and training. 

This Program Element, and all changes to this Program Element are effective the first day of the month 
noted in Issue Date section of Exhibit C Financial Assistance Award unless otherwise noted in 
Comments and Footnotes of Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award. 

  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 28 OF 41 PAGES 

2. Definitions Specific to Public Health Modernization 
a. Foundational Capabilities. The knowledge, skills and abilities needed to successfully implement 

Foundational Programs.  
b. Foundational Programs. The public health system’s core work for communicable disease control, 

prevention and health promotion, environmental health, and assuring access to clinical 
preventive services.  

c. Public Health Accountability Outcome Metrics. A set of data used to monitor statewide progress 
toward population health goals.  

d. Public Health Accountability Process Measures. A set of data used to monitor local progress 
toward implementing public health strategies that are necessary for meeting Public Health 
Accountability Outcome Metrics.  

e. Public Health Modernization Manual (PHMM). A document that provides detailed definitions 
for each Foundational Capability and Foundational Program for governmental public health, as 
identified in ORS 431.131-431.145. The Public Health Modernization Manual is available at: 
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernizatio
n_manual.pdf.  

f. Regional Partnership. A group of two or more LPHAs and at least one other organization that is 
not an LPHA that is convened for the purpose of implementing strategies for communicable 
disease control and reducing health disparities. 

g. Regional Infrastructure. The formal relationships established between LPHAs and other 
organizations to implement strategies under this funding.  

3. Alignment with Modernization Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities. The 
activities and services that the LPHA has agreed to deliver under this Program Element align with 
Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities and the Public Health Accountability Metrics (if 
applicable), as follows (see Oregon’s Public Health Modernization Manual, 
(http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_man
ual.pdf):   
a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in the Public Health Modernization 

Manual) 

Program Components  Foundational Programs Foundational Capabilities 

 

C
D

 C
on

tro
l 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

A
cc

es
s t

o 
cl

in
ic

al
 

pr
ev

en
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

H
ea

lth
 e

qu
ity

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 E

pi
de

m
io

lo
gy

 

Po
lic

y 
&

 P
la

nn
in

g 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

 Po
pu

la
tio

n 
H

ea
lth

 
D

ire
ct

 se
rv

ic
es

 

http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf


OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 29 OF 41 PAGES 

Asterisk (*) = Primary Foundational Program that 
aligns with each component 
X = Other applicable Foundational Programs 

X = Foundational Capabilities that align with each 
component 

Use Leadership and 
Governance to plan for 
full implementation of 
public health 
modernization (Section 1) 

*  X   X X X X X X X 

Implement strategies for 
local communicable 
disease control, 
emergency preparedness 
and response, 
environmental health, 
and health equity and 
cultural responsiveness 
(Section 1) 

*  X    X X X  X X 

Demonstrate regional 
approaches for providing 
public health services 
(Section 2) 

*  X   X X X X X X X 

Implement regional 
communicable disease 
control, emergency 
preparedness and 
response, environmental 
health, and health equity 
and cultural 
responsiveness (Section 2) 

*  X    X X X  X X 

Establish, expand, train 
and sustain the public 
health workforce gained 
during the COVID-19 
pandemic.  (Section 3) 

*     X X X X   X 

 
b. Public Health Accountability Outcome Metrics:  

The Public Health Accountability Metrics adopted by the Public Health Advisory Board for 
communicable disease control and environmental health are:  

• Rate of congenital syphilis 

• Rate of any stage syphilis among people who can become pregnant 

• Rate of primary and secondary syphilis 

• Two-year old vaccination rates 

• Adult influenza vaccination rates 



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 30 OF 41 PAGES 

• Emergency department and urgent care visits due to heat 

• Hospitalizations due to heat 

• Heat deaths 

• Respiratory (non-infectious) emergency department and urgent care visits 

• Community water system health-based violations, #/% of population affected 

• Number of/type of drinking water advisories, #/% of population affected  

• Number of weeks in drought annually, #/% of population affected  
LPHA is not required to select these metrics as areas of focus for funds made available through 
this Program Element. LPHA is not precluded from using funds to address other high priority 
communicable disease and environmental health risks based on local epidemiology, priorities 
and need.    

c. Public Health Accountability Process Measures:   
Public Health Accountability Process Measures will be adopted by the Public Health Advisory 
Board for communicable disease control and environmental health by end of 2023.   

4. Procedural and Operational Requirements. By accepting and using the Financial Assistance awarded 
under this Agreement and for this Program Element, LPHA agrees to conduct activities in accordance 
with the following requirements:  
Requirements that apply to Section 1 and Section 2 funding: 
a. Implement activities in accordance with this Program Element.  
b. Engage in activities as described in its Section 1 and/or Section 2 work plan, once approved by 

OHA and incorporated herein with this reference. See Attachment 1 for work plan requirements 
for Section 1. 

c. Use funds for this Program Element in accordance with its Section 1 and/or Section 2 Program 
Budget, once approved by OHA and incorporated herein with this reference.  Modification to the 
Section 1 and/or Section 2 Program Budget of 10% or more within any individual budget 
category may only be made with OHA approval. 

d. Implement and use a performance management system to monitor achievement of Section 1 
and/or Section 2 work plan objectives, strategies, activities, deliverables and outcomes.  

e. Participate in learning collaboratives and capacity building for achieving each public health 
authority’s and the public health system’s goals for achieving health equity.  

f. Ensure LPHA administrator, LPHA staff, and/or other partner participation in shared learning 
opportunities or communities of practice focused on governance and public health system-wide 
planning and change initiatives, in the manner prescribed by OHA.  This includes sharing work 
products and deliverables with OHA and other LPHAs and may include public posting.  

g. Participate in evaluation of public health modernization implementation in the manner prescribed 
by OHA.  

Requirements that apply to Section 1: LPHA Leadership, Governance and Implementation:  
a. Implement strategies for Leadership and Governance, Health Equity and Cultural 

Responsiveness, Communicable Disease Control, Emergency Preparedness and Environmental 
Health as described in Attachment 1 of this Program Element.  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 31 OF 41 PAGES 

b. Collaborate and partner with OHA-funded community-based organizations working in the areas 
of communicable disease, emergency preparedness and/or environmental public health through 
meetings and alignment of planned activities. 

c. In addition to the required prevention initiatives specified in Attachment 1 of this Program 
Element, LPHA may implement prevention initiatives that are responsive to the needs of the 
community, as pertains to Foundational Capabilities and Foundational Programs.  

Requirements that apply to Section 2: Regional Public Health Service Delivery:  
a. Implement strategies for public health service delivery using regional approaches, which may be 

through Regional Partnerships, utilizing regional staffing models, or implementing regional 
projects.  

b. Use regional strategies to improve Regional Infrastructure for communicable disease control, 
emergency preparedness and response, environmental health, and health equity and cultural 
responsiveness.  

Requirements that apply to Section 3: COVID-19 Public Health Workforce: 
a. Implement activities in accordance with this Program Element.  
b. Use funds for this Program Element in accordance with its Section 3 Program Budget, once 

approved by OHA and incorporated herein with this reference.  Modification to Budget of 10% 
or more within any individual budget category may only be made with OHA approval. 

c. Use funds to establish, expand, train and sustain the public health workforce gained during the 
COVID-19 pandemic. This includes workforce that directly supports COVID-19 response 
activities and those supporting strategies and interventions for public health and community 
priorities beyond COVID-19. 

d. Demonstrate strategies to ensure long-term improvements for public health and community 
prevention, preparedness, response and recovery. 

e. Demonstrate strategies for eliminating health inequities, which may include workforce diversity 
recruitment, retention and development of innovative community partnerships. 

Requirements that apply to Section 4:  Public Health Infrastructure: Workforce 
a. Implement at least one of the following activities: 

(1) Implement strategies and activities to recruit, hire and retain a diverse public health 
workforce that reflects the communities served by the LPHA. 

(2) Recruit and hire and/or retain new public health staff to increase workforce capacity in 
Foundational Capabilities and programs, including but not limited to epidemiology, 
communicable disease, community partnership and development, policy and planning, 
communications, and basic public health infrastructure (fiscal, human resources, 
contracts, etc.).  LPHA will determine its specific staffing needs. 

(3) Support and retain public health staff through systems development and improvements. 
(4) Support and retain public health staff through workforce training and development. 
(5) Transition COVID-19 staffing positions to broader public health infrastructure positions. 
(6) Recruit and hire new public health staff, with a focus on seeking applicants from 

communities and populations served to provide additional capacity and expertise in the 
Foundational Capabilities and Foundational Programs identified by the LPHA as critical 
workforce needs. 



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 32 OF 41 PAGES 

(7) Perform other related activities as approved by OHA in section b., below. 
b. LPHA must request in writing prior approval for other related activities.  No such activities may 

be implemented without written approval of OHA.  
5. General Budget and Expense Reporting. LPHAs funded under Section 1, Section 2 and/or Section 3 

must complete an “Oregon Health Authority Public Health Division Expenditure and Revenue Report” 
located in Exhibit C of the Agreement.  These reports must be submitted to OHA each quarter on the 
following schedule: 

Fiscal Quarter Due Date 

First:  July 1 – September 30 October 30 

Second:  October 1 – December 31 January 30 

Third:  January 1 – March 31 April 30 

Fourth:  April 1 – June 30 August 20 

6. Reporting Requirements.  
i. Have on file with OHA an approved Section 1 and/or Section 2 Work Plan and Budget using the 

format prescribed by OHA no later than 60 days after OHA notifies LPHA of anticipated 
funding allocation for the biennium. 

j. Have on file with OHA an approved Section 3 Budget using the format prescribed by OHA no 
later than 60 days after OHA notifies LPHA of anticipated funding allocation for the biennium. 

k. Submit Section 1 and Section 2 Work Plan progress reports using the timeline and format 
prescribed by OHA. 

l. Submit updated Section 1, 2 and 3 Budgets upon request using the format prescribed by OHA. 
m. Submit to OHA approved Section 1 and 2 work plan deliverables in the timeframe specified. 
n. Submit Section 4 data or information to OHA for evaluation purposes or as required by the 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. OHA will notify LPHA of the requirements. OHA 
will not require additional reporting beyond what is required by the Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention. 

7. Performance Measures.  
If LPHA, including LPHAs funded as Fiscal Agents for Regional Public Health Service Delivery, 
complete and submit to OHA fewer than 75% of the planned deliverables in its approved Section 1 
and/or Section 2 work plan for the funding period, LPHA or Fiscal Agent shall not be eligible to receive 
funding under this Program Element during the next funding period. The deliverables will be mutually 
agreed upon as part of the work plan approval process. 

 



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 33 OF 41 PAGES 

Attachment 1 
The table below lists the goals and requirements that LPHAs will work toward with 2023-25 funding. Efforts 
toward the following goals and requirements will be demonstrated in the LPHA and/or regional work plan.  

Programmatic goals and work plan requirements 

Goal 1: Protect communities from acute and communicable diseases through prevention initiatives that 
address health inequities. 

• LPHA will demonstrate strategies toward local or regional improvements of communicable disease 
prevention and response infrastructure.  

• LPHA will demonstrate strategies toward local or regional reductions in inequities across 
populations. 

 

Goal 2: Strengthen and expand communicable disease and environmental health emergency preparedness, 
and the public health system and communities’ ability to respond. 

• By June 30, 2025, LPHA will complete a local or regional all-hazards preparedness plan with 
community partners. (deliverable) 

• An LPHA with a completed plan will demonstrate strategies to maintain and execute a local or 
regional all-hazards plan with community partners.  

 

Goal 3: Protect communities from environmental health threats from climate change through public health 
interventions that support equitable climate adaptation. 

• By June 30, 2025, LPHA will complete a local or regional climate adaptation plan, which may be a 
separate plan or incorporated into a community health assessment and plan. (deliverable) 

• An LPHA with a completed plan will demonstrate strategies toward implementation of a local or 
regional climate adaptation plan. 

 

Goal 4: Plan for full implementation of public health modernization and submission of local modernization 
plans by 2025.  

• LPHA will demonstrate strategies to build and sustain infrastructure for public health Foundational 
Capabilities. 

• LPHA will demonstrate progress toward developing a local public health modernization plan (due to 
OHA by December 31, 2025) to implement Foundational Capabilities (ORS 431.131) and 
Foundational Programs (ORS 431.141).  

 

LPHA Requirements for increasing Capacity for Foundational Capabilities 

Leadership and Organizational Competencies 

• LPHA will demonstrate workforce or leadership initiatives necessary for local and/or regional public 
health infrastructure. 

• LPHA will participate in the development of a statewide public health workforce plan.  



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 34 OF 41 PAGES 

 

Health Equity and Cultural Responsiveness 

• By June 30, 2025, LPHA will complete a local or regional health equity plan. (deliverable) 

• An LPHA with a completed plan will demonstrate strategies toward implementation of local or 
regional health equity plan.  

• LPHA will participate in the development of a statewide health equity plan. 

 

Assessment and Epidemiology 

• LPHA will demonstrate strategies for public health data collection, analysis, reporting and 
dissemination that are necessary for 2023-25 goals and deliverables. This will include strategies to 
collect and report data that reveals health inequities in the distribution of disease, disease risks and 
social conditions that influence health. 

 

Community Partnership Development 

• LPHA will demonstrate strategies for sustaining or expanding partnerships with community 
organizations to ensure connections with BIPOC communities or other groups experiencing health 
inequities. 

• LPHA will demonstrate co-creation of culturally and linguistically responsive public health 
interventions with community partners. 

• LPHA will demonstrate involvement of community-based organizations in public health emergency 
planning or other priorities identified by communities. 

• LPHA will demonstrate sustained partnerships for infection prevention and control in congregate 
settings which may include LTCFs, prisons, shelters or childcare facilities.   

 

Communications 

• LPHA will demonstrate the ability to provide routine public health education through a variety of 
communication platforms, with consideration of linguistic and culturally responsive and functional 
needs of the community. 

• LPHA will demonstrate the ability to provide timely and accurate risk communication for areas of 
public health significance. 

 

 



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 35 OF 41 PAGES 

Attachment B 
Financial Assistance Award (FY24) 

 

 
 
 
 
 



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 36 OF 41 PAGES 

 

 
 
 
 
 



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 37 OF 41 PAGES 

Attachment C 
Information required by CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200 

 

 
 

 
 

6NU50CK000541
05/18/20
08/1/2019-07/31/2024
CDC
93.323
Epidemiology & Laboratory 
Capacity
98,897,708.00
Epidemiology & Laboratory 
Capacity
Brownie Anderson-Rana
16.41%
FALSE
No
53867
50401

Agency UEI Amount Grand Total:
Polk MSNMZ3DRBRN5 $1,517.82 $1,517.82

Budget Performance Period:

Aw arding Agency:

PE01-12 ACDP Infection Prevention Training

Indirect Cost Rate:

Research and Development (T/F):

HIPPA

PCA:
Index:

CFDA Number:

CFDA Name:

Total Federal Aw ard:

Project Description:

Aw arding Official:

Federal Aw ard Identif ication Number:

Federal Aw ard Date:

NH25PS005149
07/13/23
01/01/2023-01/31/2024
CDC
93.977
Preventive Health Services - 
Sexually Transmitted Diseases 
Control Grants
$3,501,895.00
STD Prevention & Control
Cassandra Davis
18.06
FALSE
No
53192
50403

Agency UEI Amount Grand Total:
Polk MSNMZ3DRBRN5 $151,254.00 $151,254.00

Research and Development (T/F):

Federal Aw ard Identif ication Number:

Federal Aw ard Date:

Budget Performance Period:

Aw arding Agency:

PE10-02 Sexually Transmitted Disease (STD)

CFDA Number:

HIPPA

PCA:
Index:

CFDA Name:

Total Federal Aw ard:

Project Description:

Aw arding Official:

Indirect Cost Rate:



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 38 OF 41 PAGES 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

NU90TP922036
06/07/23
07/01/2023-06/30/2024
CDC
93.069
Public Health Emergency 
Preparedness (PHEP)
8,466536.00
Public Health Emergency 
Preparedness (PHEP)
Ms. Sylvia Reeves
18.06
FALSE
No
53628
50407

Agency UEI Amount Grand Total:
Polk MSNMZ3DRBRN5 $85,133.00 $85,133.00

HIPPA

PCA:
Index:

PE12-01 Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response (PHEP)

CFDA Name:

Total Federal Aw ard:

Project Description:

Aw arding Official:

Indirect Cost Rate:

Research and Development (T/F):

Federal Aw ard Identif ication Number:

Federal Aw ard Date:

Budget Performance Period:

Aw arding Agency:

CFDA Number:

00031222 00031222
04/01/23
10/01/2022-9/30/2023 10/01/2023-9/30/2024
Medicaid XIX Medicaid XIX
93.778 93.778
Medical Assistance Program Medical Assistance Program
3,142,259,221 TBD
Medical Assistance Program Medical Assistance Program
Samina Panwhar TBD
18.06 TBD
FALSE FALSE
No No
52180 TBD
50336 50336

Agency UEI Amount Amount Grand Total:
Polk MSNMZ3DRBRN5 $813.00 $2,438.00 $3,251.00

HIPPA

PCA:
Index:

CFDA Name:

Total Federal Aw ard:

Project Description:

Aw arding Official:

Indirect Cost Rate:

Research and Development (T/F):

Federal Aw ard Identif ication Number:

Federal Aw ard Date:

Budget Performance Period:

Aw arding Agency:

PE42-03 MCAH Perinatal General Funds & Title XIX

CFDA Number:



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 39 OF 41 PAGES 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

00031222 00031222
12/10/21 TBD
10/01/2022-9/30/2023 10/01/2023-9/30/2024
Medicaid XIX Medicaid XIX
93.778 93.778
Medical Assistance Program Medical Assistance Program
$2,454,666.00 TBD
Medical Assistance Program Medical Assistance Program
Samina Panwhar TBD
18.06% TBD
FALSE FALSE
No No
52174 TBD
50336 50336

Agency UEI Amount Amount Grand Total:
Polk MSNMZ3DRBRN5 $1,525.00 $4,575.00 $6,100.00

Research and Development (T/F):

Federal Aw ard Identif ication Number:

Federal Aw ard Date:

Budget Performance Period:

Aw arding Agency:

PE42-06 MCAH General Funds & Title XIX

CFDA Number:

HIPPA

PCA:
Index:

CFDA Name:

Total Federal Aw ard:

Project Description:

Aw arding Official:

Indirect Cost Rate:

B0447441
04/06/23
10/01/2022 - 09/30/2024
DHHS/HRSA
93.994
Maternal and Child Health 
Services
4,797,142
Maternal and Child Health 
Services Block Grant to the 
States
Lewissa Swanson
10%
FALSE
No
52355
50336

Agency UEI Amount Grand Total:
Polk MSNMZ3DRBRN5 $34,599.00 $34,599.00

Research and Development (T/F):

Federal Aw ard Identif ication Number:

Federal Aw ard Date:

Budget Performance Period:

Aw arding Agency:

PE42-11 MCAH Title V

CFDA Number:

HIPPA

PCA:
Index:

CFDA Name:

Total Federal Aw ard:

Project Description:

Aw arding Official:

Indirect Cost Rate:



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 40 OF 41 PAGES 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

B0447441
04/06/23
10/01/2022-09/30/2024
DHHS
93.994
Maternal and Child Health 
Services
4,797,142
Maternal and Child Health 
Services Block Grant to the 
States
Lewissa Swanson
10%
FALSE
Yes
52358
50336

Agency UEI Amount Grand Total:
Polk MSNMZ3DRBRN5 $2,960.00 $2,960.00

Research and Development (T/F):

Federal Aw ard Identif ication Number:

Federal Aw ard Date:

Budget Performance Period:

Aw arding Agency:

CFDA Number:

Indirect Cost Rate:

PE42-12 MCAH Oregon Mothers Care Title V

HIPPA

PCA:
Index:

CFDA Name:

Total Federal Aw ard:

Project Description:

Aw arding Official:

NH23IP922626
7/12/2023
07/01/2023-06/30/2024
HHS/CDC
93.268
Immunization Cooperative 
Agreements
6,192,977
CDC-RFA-IP19-1901 
Immunization and Vaccines for 
Children
Divya Cassity
18.06%
FALSE
No
53599
50404

Agency UEI Amount Grand Total:
Polk MSNMZ3DRBRN5 $25,625.00 $25,625.00

Research and Development (T/F):

Federal Aw ard Identif ication Number:

Federal Aw ard Date:

Budget Performance Period:

Aw arding Agency:

CFDA Number:

Indirect Cost Rate:

PE43-01 Public Health Practice (PHP) - Immunization Services

HIPPA

PCA:
Index:

CFDA Name:

Total Federal Aw ard:

Project Description:

Aw arding Official:



OHA - 2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
180027 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 41 OF 41 PAGES 

 
 

 
 
 
 

State Funds State Funds 00031223 00031224 98009022 98009023
06/21/23 TBD 09/21/22 TBD
10/01/2022-09/30/2023 10/01/2023-09/30/2024 10/01/2022-09/30/2025 10/01/2023-09/30/2026
EPA EPA EPA EPA
66.432 66.432 66.468 66.468
State Public Water 
System Supervision

State Public Water 
System Supervision

Capitalization Grants for 
Drinking Water State 
Revolving Funds

Capitalization Grants for 
Drinking Water State 
Revolving Funds

2516000 TBD 11064000 TBD
OHA State Public Water 
System Supervision 
(PWSS) Primacy

OHA State Public Water 
System Supervision 
(PWSS) Primacy

Oregon FFY 2022 
Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund (base)

Oregon FFY 2023 
Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund (base)

Tiffany Eastman TBD Megan Browning TBD
18.06% TBD 18.06% TBD

FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE FALSE
No No No No No No
51283 51058 51322 TBD2 51835 TBD1
50204 50204 50204 50204 50204 50204

Agency UEI Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Grand Total:
Polk MSNMZ3DRBRN5 $3,802.00 $1,268.00 $951.00 $2,853.00 $951.00 $2,853.00 $12,678.00

Research and Development 
( / )

Federal Aw ard Identif ication 
N bFederal Aw ard Date:

Budget Performance Period:

Aw arding Agency:

PE50 Safe Drinking Water (SDW) Program (Vendors)

CFDA Number:

HIPPA

PCA:
Index:

CFDA Name:

Total Federal Aw ard:

Project Description:

Aw arding Official:

Indirect Cost Rate:


	23-203 (Amendment 1 to 23-94).pdf
	INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT #PO-44000-00020537
	SECTION 4: FEES AND COMPENSATION

	23-204 (Amendment 2 to 23-109).pdf
	2023-2025 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE
	FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT

	Program Element #12: Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response (PHEPR) Program
	OHA Program Responsible for Program Element:
	Note: Emergency preparedness crosses over all foundational programs.
	ATTACHMENT 1*1
	Attachment 2: Use of Funds
	ATTACHMENT 3*
	(1) Use funds provided under this Agreement to support mental health staff capacity (FTE) within the school-based health center system. Funding can used to support multiple positions within each SBHC.  Funding must be used to provide Culturally and Li...
	(2) Use funds in compliance with the full list of SBHC Mental Health Expansion Grant award requirements that are posted on the OHA website: https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/HEALTHYPEOPLEFAMILIES/YOUTH/HEALTHSCHOOL/SCHOOLBASEDHEALTHCENTERS/Pages/mh-expans...
	g. This Section 4.g. is only applicable to LPHA if LPHA is selected to receive a School-Linked Telehealth Grant from OHA. LPHA agrees to conduct School-Linked Telehealth Grant activities in accordance with the following requirements:
	(1) SBHC must be the distant site (i.e., where the provider is located) that provides telehealth in originating sites (i.e., where the patient is receiving the telehealth service) that are schools without SBHCs as outlined in HB 2591 (Chapter 619, Or ...
	(2) Funds provided under this Agreement must be used to support a School-Linked Telehealth Pilot Project by:
	(3) LPHA must participate in monthly technical assistance or learning collaborative calls with other School-Linked Telehealth Grantees and engage in evaluation planning and data collection with the OHA SBHC State Program Office (SPO).




